

Minutes of Executive Cabinet

Meeting date Thursday, 13 July 2023

Members present: Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair), Councillor Peter Wilson

(Vice-Chair) and Councillors Beverley Murray, Terry Howarth, Alistair Morwood, Margaret France and

Adrian Lowe

Officers: Chris Sinnott (Chief Executive), Chris Moister (Director

(Governance)), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and Digital)), Caroline Winstanley (Transformation Coordinator), Abbey Pearce (Communications Assistant) and Nina Neisser-Burke (Democratic and Member Services

Officer)

Apologies: Councillor Alex Hilton and Michelle Le Marinel

Other Members: Councillor Jean Sherwood, Julia Berry, Mark Clifford,

Alan Cullens, Gordon France, Danny Gee, Tommy Gray, Samantha Martin, June Molyneaux, Dedrah Moss and

Craige Southern

23.EC.7 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 15 June 2023 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 15 June 2023 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader.

23.EC.8 Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of any interests.

23.EC.9 Public Questions

There were no public questions.

23.EC.10 Key Partnerships Update

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources presented the report of the Director of Change and Delivery which provides an update on the performance of the council's key partnership arrangements.

The key partnerships performance report is produced in accordance with the requirements of the council's key contracts and partnership framework. Members noted that overall, the performance of all key partnerships is strong, and the financial

assessment of the partnerships are positive with the financial standing of all key partnerships monitored.

New contracts have been included in the reporting for the Key Contracts and Partnerships framework for the first time in 2023/24. Objectives have been set for 2023/25 and an update on progress will be brought against these in July 2024.

Members requested an update on Brinscall Baths and a potential opening date and discussed the reporting of council-owned limited companies going forward.

Decision:

That the report be noted.

Reasons for recommendations:

To ensure effective monitoring of the council's key contracts and partnerships.

Other options considered and rejected:

No other options have been considered as this report is for information only.

23.EC.11 Content Management System

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources presented the report of the Director of Customer and Digital which seeks agreement on the future for Chorley Council's Content Management System (CMS).

Members noted that GOSS is the CMS system that is used to manage and modify content on several council owned websites. The current contract with GOSS is a shared contract with South Ribble Council, using separate instances to manage each councils' different websites.

Discussions with GOSS have highlighted that the council should expect a significant cost increase upon contract renewal in July 2023. However, GOSS have suggested that more attractive pricing would be available if the councils had a shared iCM administrator and production environment.

A one-year contract extension until July 2024 with GOSS has been agreed via Executive Member Decision whilst further negotiations take place. Members welcomed this approach to achieve the best value and supported that the council will undertake a full market procurement exercise if favourable commercial terms cannot be achieved.

Decision:

- 1. To agree a direct award to GOSS through a compliant procurement framework, only if favourable commercial terms can be agreed including transparency on future costs for a period of up to 5 years from July 2024, for a joint GOSS iCM platform with South Ribble Council.
- 2. In the absence of the above i.e., not obtaining favourable commercial terms directly with GOSS, the council will undertake a full market procurement exercise which will include open-source software currently being explored.
- 3. To approve the delegation of the outcome and final sign off for either recommendation (a) or (b) to the Leader of the Council and Executive Member (Resources).

Reasons for recommendations:

To ensure that the council maintains and develops its online presence and delivery of online services to residents.

Other options considered and rejected:

Other options to be considered are detailed within the report.

23.EC.12 Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on the grounds they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

23.EC.13 Key Partnerships Update (confidential appendices to item 4)

This item was considered earlier in the meeting.

23.EC.14 Content Management System (confidential appendices to item 5)

This item was considered earlier in the meeting.

23.EC.15 Property and Assets Management System - Contract Award

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources presented the confidential report of the Chief Executive and Director of Customer and Digital which updates Members on the requirement for a Property and Assets Management system, seeks approval to award the contract, and advises Members on the additional resourcing required to support the adoption of the system.

Decision:

- 1. To approve the award of contract to Civica Property Management (CPM) via a direct award utilising the Crown Commercial Services Framework on a five-year contract term.
- 2. To note the requirement for the creation of two new temporary shared posts within the Commercial Services directorate to support data validation, data capture, data entry and overall adoption of the Property and Assets Management system.

Reasons for recommendations:

- 1. Chorley Council and South Ribble Borough Council Property and Assets teams now operate within the Shared Service model.
- 2. To make further improvements in the efficiency and effectiveness of the service across both Councils there is a clear need to introduce a property asset management solution. Currently each authority operates with a series of stand alone databases, utilising different systems of records management. The benefits of a single property management system are detailed later in this report.
- A report to both Chorley Council and South Ribble Borough Council Executive
 Cabinet meetings in November 2022 sought approval of the procurement
 routes for numerous ICT software solutions, including the procurement route for
 a Property and Assets Management system.

- 4. Included in this report was the procurement of Civica Property Management (previously known as Technology Forge) with procuring the solution via a direct award approved at the cabinet meeting.
- 5. Discussions have now taken place with Crown Commercial Services (CCS) regarding a direct award utilising their framework. CCS have confirmed that a direct award via their framework is permissible and a compliant route to market due to the software being intrinsically linked as Technology Forge, which is now known as Civica Property Management already in use at Chorley Council.

Other options considered and rejected:

- A further competitive procurement exercise was considered but rejected. This
 was rejected as Technology Forge (now known as Civica Property
 Management) is already in use at Chorley Council. Time is of the essence with
 a direct award saving time on the procurement of a Property and Assets
 Management system.
- 2. A specification document and a series of questions have been sent to Civica Property Management to ensure the solution meets both Councils requirements. The responses were acceptable, and there is confidence that the solution allows for best value to be achieved in line with Contract Procedure Rules via a direct award to Civica Property Management
- 3. The current financial system used at both Councils is a Civica product. With the Property and Assets system also being a Civica product this allows for more simplified integration between the two systems. Should the Council procure an alternative property and asset management system there would be additional costs associated with integrating with our financial system. As a result, awarding direct to Civica allows for savings to be made on integration elements.
- 4. The council has had conversations with two customers of Civica Property Management to understand their experience of implementation and use of the system as a reference to help in decision making. Both councils consulted (South Ayrshire and North Easy Lincolnshire Council) Civica Property Management is also in use by Lancashire County Council, Newcastle City Council and Edinburgh City Council.

23.EC.16 Grant of a Lease - Units 1 and 2 Flat Iron Parade, Market Walk

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources presented the confidential report of the Chief Executive which seeks Members authorisation for the grant of a new lease of Units 1 and 2 Flat Iron Parade to a new Tenant, Domino's Pizza UK & Ireland Limited subject to terms provisionally agreed by the Council's Consultant Surveyor.

Decision:

That the terms provisionally agreed for the grant of a new lease are approved and the Director of Governance be authorised to complete the legal formalities in accordance with these terms.

Reasons for recommendations:

Following a recent marketing exercise the proposed terms have been provisionally agreed and recommended by the Council's Retail Consultants and reflect current market conditions within the Market Walk Centre in line with other leases which have been recently agreed / completed. This proposal is also seen as a good opportunity to attract another national multiple retailer into the Market Walk Shopping Centre.

Other options considered and rejected: An offer to lease was also received from the Vaccination Centre who currently occupy Unit 13 Market Walk on licence but the current offer is seen as a better offer in terms of the proposed use being more compatible with the prominent location of this unit and an improved financial offer.		
Chair	Date	